
 

 

 
  
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
  November 9, 2020 / Zoom / 5:00pm   

 
 
 

1. WELCOME (5:00 – 5:05) 
 Good and Welfare 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA (5:05‐5:06)  
 Minutes of September 24, 2020 Board Meeting    pg. 2 

 
 
     

3. RRRF GRANT RECOMMENDATIONS (5:06‐5:30)*    pg. 6 

 

4. UPDATE ON LIFE & LEGACY PROGRAM  (5:30‐5:40) *     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* Items requiring a vote 

 

 

 
Page 1 of 29



 

 

 
Board of Trustees 

Minutes of September 24, 2020 
Call to order: 4:32 p.m.   Adjournment: 6:38 p.m. 

 
Presiding: Leigh A. Newman, Chair                Recording: M. Leighty 
 
Present: Jessica L. Fish; Gerald B. Goldberg; Ethan Goldman; Joshua Gottfried; Elysa L. Graber‐Lipperman; Walter L. Harrison; Merrill Mandell; Leigh 
A. Newman; Steven F. Piaker; David M. Roth; Rachel S. Rubin; Cyral A. Sheldon; Julie R. Spivak; Gayle W. Temkin; Sidney Ulreich; Robert K. Yass; 
Carolyn Gitlin, ex‐officio. 
 
Absent: Thomas M. Divine, Life Trustee; Blanche S. Goldenberg, Life Trustee; Robert B. Goldfarb, Life Trustee; Randall H. Weinstock. 
 
Also Attending (non‐voting): Gary Starr; Dave Miller; Arlene Schiff, Executive Director, Life & Legacy Program, Harold Grinspoon Foundation; Jay 
Spivak, Investment Committee; Jacob Schreiber, President & CEO; Michael Elfenbaum, Vice President, Grant Programs; Kathryn Gonnerman, Vice 
President, Philanthropy; Susan Lotreck, Vice President, Donor Services; Rhona Morgan, Vice President, Finance; Maureen O’Connell, Marketing 
Director; Elana MacGilpin, Development and Stewardship Officer; Madison Leighty, Development Assistant; Goldy Singh, Grants and Donor Services 
Assistant. 
 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

Welcome and Chair’s Remarks 
Tribute to Leigh Newman 

Ms. Newman welcomed everyone and called the 
meeting to order at 4:32 p.m. She congratulated Mr. 
Goldberg on his daughter’s recent wedding. 
 
Ms. Newman expressed her appreciation for Mr. Piaker 
and Mr. Roth, who are leaving the board this year, and 
Ms. Temkin, who will be the next chair. She welcomed 
Ms. Rubin and Mr. Goldman, the Trustee nominees.  
 
As a tribute to her 5 years as Board Chair, Ms. Newman 
was presented with a Kudoboard and a plaque with a 
designer Yad. Gayle Temkin, Jacob Schreiber and a few 
others expressed their appreciation for her leadership.  

   
 

 
Page 2 of 29



 
2 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

Consent Agenda 
Minutes of September 3, 2020 
Meeting 

Ms. Newman directed the Trustees’ attention to the 
minutes of the September 3, 2020 meeting. 

The meetings of the September 
3, 2020 meeting were approved 
on consent. 

The minutes of the September 
3, 2020 meeting will be filed in 
the corporate notebook. 

Governance Nominations Report  Ms. Mandell presented the proposed slate of Trustee 
nominations. Mr. Piaker and Mr. Roth will step down 
this year, to be replaced by Ms. Rubin and Mr. 
Goldman. Ms. Temkin will be the new chair (Ms. 
Newman will serve one more year as a board member). 
Ms. Graber‐Lipperman will replace Mr. Weinstock as 
treasurer. 

Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, all nominations were 
unanimously approved. 

 

Investment Committee Report 
 

Mr. Spivak summarized the Investment Committee’s 
recent meeting. The Foundation’s total assets have 
largely recovered from this spring’s market fluctuation, 
currently standing at around $124 million as of June 30, 
2020. The Investment Committee recently liquidated 
$3 million in bonds and diversified the investment of an 
additional $2 million. Mr. Spivak expressed his approval 
of the Foundation’s long‐term investment strategy, 
which he credited for the stability of the Foundation’s 
assets over the last year. 

   

President’s Report 
Overview of key issues and 
activities 

Mr. Schreiber presented his report reflecting on the 
past year. He thanked the staff for their hard work, 
sharing that he still felt that despite major operational 
changes due to the pandemic, the Foundation’s overall 
goals and strategies were in line with those outlined in 
the 2020‐2022 Strategic Plan. This year, JCF distributed 
$4.4 million in grants, including $300,000 in interfund 
grants to the RRRF. 

   

Development Report 
Directions for FY2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ms. Gonnerman updated the Trustees on development 
activities. Key areas of focus this year included 
stewardship, systematization of operations, a new 
legacy initiative, and reviews of specific Foundation 
products like charitable gift annuities and donor‐
advised funds. She announced that the Foundation 
staff would like to partner with the Harold Grinspoon 
Foundation’s Life and Legacy program beginning in 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 3 of 29



 
3 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

 
 
 
Life &Legacy Program, Arlene 
Schiff, Exec. Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Charitable Gift Annuity Task Force 
Recommendation 

2021 and introduced Ms. Schiff of the Grinspoon 
Foundation. 
 
Ms. Schiff outlined the Life and Legacy program, which 
includes monetary incentives, training and support for 
organizations that work together to secure planned gift 
commitments for their local Jewish community. The 
Trustees asked questions about the balance of 
professional and lay involvement in the initiative, JCF’s 
role as initiator and member of the program, and 
cooperation amongst community organizations. 
 
Ms. Gonnerman directed the Trustees’ attention to the 
task force’s recommendations regarding charitable gift 
annuities. She reviewed the Foundation’s history with 
this type of gift, including the Board’s decision to 
reinsure the previous CGA pool in 2013 and noted that 
implementing age and gift minimums and new asset 
management standards may help the Foundation 
steward a balanced pool of annuities in the future. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees approved 
the task force’s recommendation 
for a 4‐year CGA program. Mr. 
Roth abstained from the vote. 
 

 
 
 
An informational meeting with 
partner organizations to 
introduce the the Life and 
Legacy program is planned for 
this October. 

Designated Funds Review 
Committee 

Ms. Gonnerman presented the following Designated 
Fund Review Committee’s recommendations: 

• Interpret the allowance to spend “10% of 
principal” in the Covid‐19 Designated Fund 
pending policy to mean 10% of the fund 
balance on June 30, 2020, calculated net of 
the annual spending policy grant 

• Approve donor request to grant $28,924 
from the Bobbie Woronow and Ted Kaplan 
Family Fund for the Jewish Community 
Center 

• Decline to amend the Bobbie Woronow 
and Ted Kaplan Family Fund for the Jewish 
Community Center fund agreement at this 
time 

Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees 
unanimously approved the 
committee’s recommendations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Jacob will inform Ted Kaplan of 
the Board’s decision; staff will 
process the grant. 
 

 
Page 4 of 29



 
4 

 

Agenda/Issue Discussion/Report  Action/Approval 
 

Follow‐Up 
 

• Authorize staff to speak with donor 
regarding a possible grant of $39,400 from 
the Kirstein Family Holocaust Education 
Fund to the Jewish Community Center for 
emergency operating support. 

Jacob will follow up with 
Harold Kirstein. 

Budget and Finance Report  Ms. Graber‐Lipperman outlined the Budget and 
Finance Committee’s proposed revisions to the budget, 
made after reviewing the FY2020 financials. This year, 
the Foundation received the largest amount of gifts to 
custodial funds (due in part to a large bequest to  
Schoke JFS in Stamford), and the designated fund pool 
is the largest of the three fund types. There was a total 
operating surplus of around $140,000, resulting in an 
operating surplus carryforward of around $309,000. 

Upon motion, duly made and 
seconded, the Trustees 
unanimously approved the 
proposed changes to the budget. 

 

Adjournment:   Ms. Newman reflected on her role as a lay leader of the 
Foundation and Federation over the years and thanked 
Mr. Schreiber and the Trustees for their partnership. 
She called the meeting to a close at 6:38 p.m. 

    

 
 
Respectfully submitted by:  
 
__________________________ 
Gerald Goldberg, Secretary   
 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 5 of 29



RRRF GRANT COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SYNAGOGUES  11/2/2020

Report SYNAGOGUES ($225,000) Holiday Prep Other Sustainability Proj Total

Adath Israel $0 $0 $0 $0

x Beit Mordechai $1,000 $0 $3,000 $4,000

x Beth David $4,000 $0 $14,000 $18,000

x Beth El Temple $6,000 $0 $22,000 $28,000

x Beth Hillel South Windsor $4,000 $0 $10,000 $14,000

x Beth Israel $6,000 $0 $22,000 $28,000

Beth Shalom B'nai Israel $0 $0 $0 $0

x B'nai Tikvoh Sholom $2,000 $0 $5,000 $7,000

Chabad Chevra $1,000 $0 $0 $1,000

Chabad Glastonbury $1,000 $5,000 $2,500 $8,500

Chabad of the Valley $1,000 $5,000 $2,500 $8,500

Chabad West Hartford $0 $10,000 $5,000 $15,000

Congregation P'nai Or $0 $0 $0 $0

x Emanuel Synagogue $6,000 $0 $22,000 $28,000

x Farmington Valley Jewish Community $4,000 $0 $10,000 $14,000

Gishrei Shalom Congregation $0 $0 $0 $0

x Kol Haverim $4,000 $0 $10,000 $14,000

x Temple Beth Torah $1,000 $0 $3,000 $4,000

x Temple Sinai $4,000 $0 $10,000 $14,000

United Synagogues $1,000 $0 $0 $1,000

x Young Israel $6,000 $0 $14,000 $20,000

TOTALS $52,000 $20,000 $155,000 $227,000

 
Page 6 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 7 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 8 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 9 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 10 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 11 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 12 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 13 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 14 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 15 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 16 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 17 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 18 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 19 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 20 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 21 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 22 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 23 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 24 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 25 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 26 of 29



 
RRRF Synagogue Reports

 
Page 27 of 29



  

To support the people, agencies and synagogues impacted by the COVID‐19 pandemic, Federation and Foundation jointly launched the Rapid 

Relief and Recovery Fund (RRR Fund) and recruited a group of seasoned community leaders to oversee a process to determine how to best 

award grants. With the help of skilled, volunteer liaisons, local Jewish agencies and synagogues provided reports on the hardships they 

endured due to COVID‐19. 

The RRR Fund’s Grantmaking Committee reviewed the reports to gauge overall community needs and determine an equitable grantmaking 

process. Grantmaking criteria included the number of people served, the financial impact of COVID‐19, and the urgency of the need. All grants 

from the Fund are approved by the Boards of the Foundation and Federation. 

As of October 27, 2020, the RRR Fund collected nearly 500 contributions totaling close to $1 million – an incredible achievement that speaks 

to our community’s compassion and generosity, and for which we are tremendously grateful. Over the past few months, these 

contributions have made the following grants possible: 

 $88,000 to support basic human needs such as food and emergency financial assistance for individuals and families 
 $285,000 to 11 local Jewish agencies to help mitigate the economic challenges caused by COVID‐19, including: 

 $165,000 for organizational sustainability 
 $60,000 for need‐based day school scholarships 

 $60,000 for PPE and pandemic‐related capital needs 
 $52,000 in small grants to 16 synagogues to help them defray the cost of unanticipated High Holiday expenses, such as outdoor tents 

and live‐streaming equipment 
 
Next month, the Grantmaking Committee intends to award larger grants to synagogues to bolster their operations. Also in November, the 

Jewish Free Loan Fund of Greater Hartford will begin accepting interest‐free loan applications from local individuals, families, and businesses in 

need. A handful of donors contributed $175,000 to the RRR Fund specifically to establish the free loan fund.  

 

Within the RRR Fund, the Grantmaking Committee has earmarked an additional $137,000 for basic human needs and $40,000 for community 

needs, including those of agencies, to be granted on an emergent basis. 

Detailed below are the RRR Fund grants provided to support our agencies and to provide humanitarian assistance. The Committee is 

currently processing operational support grants for synagogues and will post the details by the end of November, as well as update the 

amounts awarded for humanitarian aid. For more information, please contact Michael Elfenbaum at Melfenbaum@jcfhartford.org or Laura 

Zimmerman at Lzimmerman@jewishhartford.org. 

 
Page 28 of 29



 

 

 
 

 

 

      

Agency Assistance 
 
Camp Laurelwood  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $5,000.00

Chabad Chevra  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $5,000.00

Hebrew Senior Care  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $10,000.00

Jewish Family Services of Greater Hartford  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $50,000.00

Jewish Federation of Greater Hartford  Community Services Building air filtration system  $10,000.00

Jewish Teen Learning Connection  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $10,000.00

Joyce D. and Andrew J. Mandell Jewish Community Center  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $75,000.00

Mikveh Bess Israel of West Hartford  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $5,000.00

New England Jewish Academy  Need‐based scholarships related to COVID‐19  $30,000.00

New England Jewish Academy  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $25,000.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford  Need‐based scholarships related to COVID‐19  $30,000.00

Solomon Schechter Day School of Greater Hartford  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $25,000.00

Voices of Hope  Operational support related to impact of COVID‐19  $5,000.00

Total Agency Assistance     $285,000.00

    
 

Humanitarian Assistance 
      

Emergency Food Assistance Program (via Federation and Foundation)  $28,247.00

Augmented COVID‐19 Food Program (via JFS)    $30,000.00

Financial Assistance to individuals  (via Federation and Foundation)  $22,650.00

PPE and other (via Federation)    $7,383.00

Total Humanitarian Assistance     $88,280.00

    
Grand Total Agency and Humanitarian Assistance     $373,280.00

    

 
Page 29 of 29


	11-09-20-Agenda
	Minutes-of-09-24-20
	11-09-20-RRRF-Recommendations
	RRRF Synagogue Grant RecommendationsFINAL.pdf
	RRRF Synagogue Reports 10-2020.pdf
	RRRF Report to Community10-30-20-FINAL.pdf
	webcopy_FINAL_PDF
	Lists_October





